



## The Medical Device Code of Ethical Marketing and Business Practice

## Non-binding Code Advisory Opinions Process and Library

#### Disclaimer:

The South African Medical Technology Industry Association (SAMED) is providing this advice/opinion as guidance in the context of current legislation, relevant Codes and policies, as well as industry practice, where available. The advice is provided on the basis of the information submitted by the requester. The advice is not a substitute for appropriate legal advice and is not binding on SAMED. SAMED, its board members, committees, employees and members, will not be responsible for any inaccuracies or omissions, or, liable for any damages or loss of whatsoever nature suffered by any person as a result of relying on or using the advice provided.

Although SAMED is committed to ensure that its members adhere to the principals of the Code, cannot be held responsible for the conduct of any of its members who may be alleged to be in contravention of the Code. SAMED does however bear responsibility to deal with infringements on receipt of an official complaint as laid out in the Code.

> The South African Medical Technology Industry Association T +27 11 704 2440 | F +27 086 407 4765 | E info@samed.org.za

PO Box 651761, Benmore, 2010, South Africa | Hammets Crossing Office Park, No. 2 Selbourne Avenue , Randburg

## SAMED 2 advancing patient care through MedTech

## Contents

1 2	Pro	pose of this document
3		e advisory opinions provided
	3.1	Conversion of a company masterclass training into a pre-conference workshop4
	3.2	Sponsorship of an HCP to an international trade show4
	3.3	Business Class flights for HCP with medical condition5
	3.4	Co-pay for HCP Business Class flights5
	3.5	Participation in HCP arranged golf day6
	3.6	Support of virtual training event7
	3.7	Taking an HCP/HCPs out for a meal8
	3.8	Donations toward a hospital awards evening9
	3.9	Charitable donation towards patient gowns10
	3.10	Donations to and participation in a charity providing after hour surgeries
	3.11	End-user competition prize value12
	3.12	Demo, sample, evaluation and/or loan classification13
	3.13	Branded scrubs in a clinical environment14
	3.14	Paying for HCP endorsements14
	3.15	Catering for "Tearoom" events15
	3.16	Travel provision for business workshop16
	3.17	Sponsorship of a HCP fellowship17
	3.18	Donation of medtech to a patient who cannot afford it18
	3.19	Hire of a hospital venue
	3.20	Skills development at congress19
	3.21	Donation of a television
	3.22	Placement of a medical device in exchange for product scripts22
	3.23	Catering request for a journal club meeting
	3.24	Overnight stay at a BnB as a competition prize25
	3.25	International event merit review26
	3.26	Exception request - HCP medical condition

## **1** Purpose of this document

To facilitate greater understanding of the Medical Device Code of Ethical Marketing and Business Practice (the Code) and enable members and stakeholders to learn from similar situations, this document provides a summary of advisory opinions sought and their outcomes.

advancing patient care through MedTech

This will enable companies to refer to and learn from the advisory opinions to assist in avoiding potential Code transgressions in the future.

## 2 Process for obtaining opinions/guidance and interpretations of the Medical Device Code of Ethical Marketing and Business Practice.

The Medical Device Code of Ethical Marketing and Business Practice (the Code) governs interactions between SAMED members (Signatories to the Code) and their customers, namely healthcare providers, and healthcare professionals. It fosters trust in the medtech industry by creating a framework for ethical activity that protects the reputation of industry stakeholders.

The Code is an instrument for self-regulation of the medical technology industry and SAMED is the custodian of the Code. Its key principle is that signatories to the Code will not offer inappropriate inducements to healthcare providers and healthcare professionals in order to sell or lease their products.

It may be that you require guidance relating to marketing and business practices in relation to the Code to ensure that you or your organization do not inadvertently transgress the Code. In this regard you can request a non-binding, free of charge code advisory opinion from SAMED by following the below process.

All queries must be lodged in writing by email with the SAMED office i.e., info@samed.org.za. Written queries should not contain any competitively sensitive information. We will use our very best endeavours to ensure that adequate measures are put in place to ensure that queries are kept confidential. The anonymised query will be forwarded to the SAMED Code Advisory Sub-Committee via email for review. If we have had similar queries where an advisory opinion was given, that advisory will be forwarded along with your request. The Code Advisory Sub-Committee will provide a response within 2 weeks from receipt of the query.

If the case is urgent, please indicate as such in your request, as the Code Advisory Sub-Committee will then be given 72 hours to respond. SAMED will not be able to process queries requiring less than the 72 hours for response.

In cases where the Code Advisory Sub-Committee are unable to arrive at a majority consensus, the SAMED Board will be asked to provide an opinion. SAMED will ensure that any committee member who may be a competitor to your company, will not participate in the consideration of the query and the committee are obliged to disclose any conflicts of interest. Once the committee and/or Board have come to a decision, the SAMED Secretariat will draft the Code advisory opinion, which once approved by the Code Advisory Sub-Committee will be provided to you in writing.

<u>Note:</u> The advisory opinion does not constitute legal advice. All members have an independent obligation to ascertain that their interactions with their customers comply with all current laws

and regulations and the principles as set out in the Code. Advisory opinions will be accompanied with the relevant SAMED disclaimer.

advancing patient care through MedTech

## 3 Code advisory opinions provided

## Disclaimer, non-binding SAMED Code Committee advisory opinions and limitation of liability;

The South African Medical Technology Industry Association (SAMED) is providing this advice/opinion as guidance in the context of current legislation, relevant Codes and policies, as well as industry practice, where available. The advice is provided on the basis of the information submitted by the requester. The advice is not a substitute for appropriate legal advice and is not binding on SAMED. SAMED, its board members, committees, employees and members, will not be responsible for any inaccuracies or omissions, or, liable for any damages or loss of whatsoever nature suffered by any person as a result of relying on or using the advice provided. Although SAMED is committed to ensure that its members adhere to the principals of the Code, cannot be held responsible for the conduct of any of its members who may be alleged to be in contravention of the Code. SAMED does however bear responsibility to deal with infringements on receipt of an official complaint as laid out in the Code.

## 3.1 Conversion of a company masterclass training into a pre-conference workshop

**Query:** A company was requested by a society to incorporate the masterclass that they had arranged adjacent to the societies conference

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1: General criteria for events

Member companies may invite HCPs to company events and third-party organised educational events, conferences and procedure training. The principles and criteria set out in this chapter shall apply to all such events supported in any way by member companies, irrespective of who organises the event.

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 1: Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser.

The meeting and event should be appropriate to all delegates' scope of practice.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• A "trade show" is an exhibition and promotion of medical technologies by various suppliers and is not a training or educational event. It would, therefore not be appropriate for the company to sponsor the HCP.

## 3.2 Sponsorship of an HCP to an international trade show

**Query:** A company wanted to know if it would be appropriate to sponsor an HCP to attend an international trade show, such as Medica or Arab Health.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1: General criteria for events

Member companies may invite HCPs to company events and third-party organised educational events, conferences and procedure training. The principles and criteria set out in this chapter shall apply to all such events supported in any way by member companies, irrespective of who organises the event.

advancing patient care through MedTech

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 1: Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser.

The meeting and event should be appropriate to all delegates' scope of practice.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• A "trade show" is an exhibition and promotion of medical technologies by various suppliers and is not a training or educational event. It would, therefore not be appropriate for the company to sponsor the HCP.

## 3.3 Business Class flights for HCP with medical condition

**Query:** A company sought allowance to provide business class flights to a healthcare professional (HCP) owing to a medical condition which would make travelling by economy for an extended period uncomfortable/unfeasible. The HPC was travelling to a company international training event.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 6: Travel

Member companies may sponsor business class travel for HCPs **only** for:

- Faculty members irrespective of day of arrival.
  - HCPs attending advisory boards and clinical investigations irrespective of day of arrival.

Premium economy flights may be considered in the class of international economy travel, however perception and cost are important factors when deciding whether premium economy flights may be acceptable.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- The HCP should provide the member with a medical certificate not older than 3 months from his own physician confirming his condition.
- The company may offer a premium upgradeable economy class ticket. Should the surgeon not wish to fly premium economy then he should contribute the difference in costs from premium economy to business.

## 3.4 Co-pay for HCP Business Class flights

**Query:** A company hosting an international product training event intended to provide flights for local HCPs to attend. One of the HCPs elected to pay his own costs (flights and accommodation), while the costs of two others were being sponsored by the company. The HCP not being sponsored



had opted to fly business class while the two sponsored HCPs were due to fly economy inline with the Code.

The company was concern that the perception of the two sponsored HCPs would be that the company provided the business class fare for the other HCP. The company wanted to provide the value of the economy class tickets to the sponsored HCPs as a co-pay should they want to upgrade to a business class flight.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 6: Travel

Member companies may sponsor business class travel for HCPs **only** for:

- Faculty members irrespective of day of arrival.
- HCPs attending advisory boards and clinical investigations irrespective of day of arrival.

Premium economy flights may be considered in the class of international economy travel, however perception and cost are important factors when deciding whether premium economy flights may be acceptable.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- The company could offer an upgradeable economy class ticket and mention to the surgeons that they may fund the difference to upgrade to business class themselves.
- The company was encouraged to develop a consistent Travel Policy to deal with matters related to HCPs wanting flight upgrades (i.e., economy except for genuine exceptions or everyone can upgrade if they pay for it themselves).

## 3.5 Participation in HCP arranged golf day

**Query:** The company received a request from a group of HCPs to provide sponsorship for a hosted golf day in which various other HCPs would be participating. Sponsorship options included providing prizes, displaying marketing material (banners, logo on prizes) and/or 'manning' a tee. The company wanted to source prizes on the HCP's behalf and participate in other 'marketing' activities.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## Introduction

- The Principle of Image and Perception
- The definition of "Entertainment" includes, but is not limited to... sporting events (e.g., skiing, golf, rugby or football match) and other leisure arrangements.

## PART 1, Chapter 1: General criteria for events

The principles and criteria set out in this chapter shall apply to all such events supported in any way by member companies, irrespective of who organises the event.

A member company shall not organise events which include social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment, nor support such elements which form part of third-party organised educational events...Entertainment should not dominate or interfere with the overall scientific content of the programme and should not be the main attraction of the event.

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 2: Event location and venue

The event location and venue should not become the main attraction of the event...The perceived image of the location and venue must not be luxury, or tourist/holiday-oriented, or that of an entertainment venue.

advancing patient care through MedTech

## PART 1, Chapter 3, Clause 2: Promotional items

Definition: An item that is provided by or on behalf of a Member to another person or organization and is intended as a promotional reminder / campaign relating to the Company and its products (records of all promotional campaigns must be kept for a period of five years).

Promotional items to HCPs, appropriate administrative staff, sales and other staff are acceptable provided that they are:

- Within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.
- Not for personal use e.g., no entertainment CDs/DVDs, electronic items for entertainment, tickets to attend sporting events or other forms of entertainment.
- Educational and/or of scientific value, benefit the patient and/or be relevant to the practice.
- No cash or cash equivalents (e.g., vouchers) are allowed. Promotional items must be branded with Company name and/or Product and/or Logo.

## PART 1, Chapter 3, Clause 6: Competitions

Competitions should fulfil the following criteria:

- The competition is based on medical/product knowledge or the acquisition of scientific knowledge.
- Individual prizes or educational items offered should benefit the patient and / or be relevant to the practice; and within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.
- The prize cannot comprise of cash or a cash equivalent (e.g. vouchers).
- Entry into a competition must not be dependent upon prescribing, ordering or recommending of a product and no such condition shall be made or implied.
- No cash or cash equivalents (e.g. vouchers) are allowed for completion of a survey or as a prize for a competition.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• In respect of the code's prohibition of support of social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment of HCPs and that the prizes are for personal use by the HCPs, include vouchers and are not of benefit to the patient/or relevant to the practice, this activity would constitute a transgression of the code. This is irrespective of the fact that prizes were elicited at no cost to the company.

## 3.6 Support of virtual training event

**Query:** A company was approached to provide sponsorship/support to third party virtual surgical workshop. The company would provide sponsorship in exchange for their company logo on slides/invitations and a slot to play a short demonstration video.

The company wanted to know if they can provide the funding to the institution hosting the training in exchange for promotion and if the video may include products or must be a generic company video.



## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

#### PART 1, Chapter 1: General criteria for events

The principles and criteria set out in this chapter shall apply to all such events supported in any way by member companies, irrespective of who organises the event.

#### PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 1: Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser.

The direct sponsorship of HCPs to attend third-party organised educational events is prohibited.

- Third-party organised educational events (main programme)Companies will not be able to directly support a healthcare professional, neither as a delegate nor as a speaker
- Third-party organised procedure/hands-on trainings: Companies may support delegates but not speakers, the latter being independent

Advertisement and promotion at events is subject to relevant domestic legislation and / or regulations.

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 4: CPD meetings

No product promotion is allowed in the CPD meeting room. Company-branded items/promotions are permissible.

It was noted that due to the Covid-19 pandemic many trainings and congresses had to be conducted virtually. Many organisers proposed virtual sponsorship options over the traditional exhibition space they would ordinarily sell to offset the costs of the event.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- Whether a virtual or face to face meeting, restrictions contained in the code still apply.
- In respect of a CME meeting (CPD point meetings), no commercial promotion of the product may be allowed during the presentation as this would be the same as no product promotion in the 'room' where the academic discussions are taking place. If not a CME meeting, it would be acceptable for the video to contain product promotion.
- Company names may be displayed as logos on slides and programme/invitation as this is applicable to face-to-face meetings as well.
- In respect of payment, it is acceptable to pay the third-party event organisers for sponsorship options as the company may have done as much for exhibition space which would have been used for company promotion.

## 3.7 Taking an HCP/HCPs out for a meal

**Query:** A company wanted to know if it was permissible to invite an HCP/HCPs (without spouses) for a meal (lunch/dinner)?

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 1: Event programme

A member company shall not organise events which include social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment, nor support such elements where part of third-party organised educational events.

advancing patient care through MedTech

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 2: Event location and venue

The event location and venue should not become the main attraction of the event. For the location and the venue, member companies must take into account at all times the following considerations:

- Potential adverse public perceptions of the location and venue for the event. The perceived image of the location and venue must not be luxury, or tourist/holiday-oriented, or that of an entertainment venue.
- The venue should be a business or commercial centre providing conference facilities conducive to the exchange of scientific and medical information and the transmission of knowledge.

## PART 1, Chapter 2, Clause 3: Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings

Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional and other business meetings where the objective is to discuss product and related services, features and benefits, conduct contract negotiations or discuss sales terms.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- It would be appropriate to invite an HCP to a meal (without their spouse) if there is a legitimate business purpose to holding the meal with them and as long as the company can justify that the venue is conducive to the exchange of scientific and medical information and the transmission of knowledge.
- Taking an HCP out for meal simply for the sake of it, even without their spouse, would not be in accordance with the requirements of the Code and may well be deemed to be 'entertainment or leisure'.

## 3.8 Donations toward a hospital awards evening

**Query:** A hospital hosting an awards ceremony for their staff at the hospital invited the company to make a financial contribution (donations) towards the event. The company wanted to know if participation was acceptable.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 1: Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser.

The meeting and event should be appropriate to all delegates' scope of practice.

A member company shall not organise events which include social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment, nor support such elements where part of third-party organised educational events. For third-party organised educational events, entertainment must be outside of the educational programme schedule and paid for separately by the HCPs. Entertainment should not dominate or interfere with the overall scientific content of the

programme and must be held during times that do not overlap with a scientific session. The entertainment should not be the main attraction of the event.

advancing patient care through MedTech

## Part 1, Chapter 4: Charitable donations

Charitable donations mean provision of cash, equipment, company product or relevant thirdparty product, for exclusive use for charitable or philanthropic purposes and/or to benefit a charitable or philanthropic cause. Charitable donations may only be made to bona fide registered charities whose main objects are genuine charitable or philanthropic purposes...

Charitable donations may be made if properly recorded and approved by the responsible person(s) in each company or organisation. Charitable donations are only allowed provided:

- They are documented and kept on record by the donor.
- Donations must not be paid directly to HCPs or to healthcare administration staff.

Companies are encouraged to make available publicly, information about charitable donations made by them as covered in this section.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- Such a donation would in all likely hood not be deemed appropriate as an annual award ceremony is not an educational event (which may be deemed to be of a mainly entertainment, social and/or leisure nature).
- In addition, the entity asking for the donation does not appear to be a bone fide charitable organisation and such donation may well be used to fund the entertainment / social aspect of the event and not for the purposes of supporting healthcare and research.
- Below are a few points to consider:
  - If it is a Government Hospital, then the Public Finance Management Acts applies, and it is very easy to violate this Act with a "Charitable Contribution".
  - Additionally, a Charitable Contribution request should be approved by the Accounting Officer of that Institution.
  - It is only Charitable if a Tax Certificate 18A can be provided.

## 3.9 Charitable donation towards patient gowns

**Query:** A company received a request for a donation to a hospital to purchase patient gowns. They wanted an opinion on if the company be would be permitted to provide a donation.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## Part 1, Chapter 4: Charitable donations

Charitable donations mean provision of cash, equipment, company product or relevant third-party product, for exclusive use for charitable or philanthropic purposes and/or to benefit a charitable or philanthropic cause. Charitable donations may only be made to bona fide registered charities whose main objects are genuine charitable or philanthropic purposes...

Charitable donations may be made if properly recorded and approved by the responsible person(s) in each company or organisation. Charitable donations are only allowed provided:

- They are documented and kept on record by the donor.
- Donations must not be paid directly to HCPs or to healthcare administration staff.

Companies are encouraged to make available publicly, information about charitable donations made by them as covered in this section.

advancing patient care through MedTech

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

- If such a donation were made, it may contravene the Code as it is not seen as a charitable donation in the context of the Code and the company should decline the request.
- Below are a few points to consider:
  - If it is a Government Hospital, then the Public Finance Management Acts applies and it is very easy to violate this Act with a "Charitable Contribution".
  - Additionally, a Charitable Contribution request should be approved by the Accounting Officer of that Institution.
  - $\circ~$  It is only Charitable if a Tax Certificate 18A can be provided.

## 3.10 Donations to and participation in a charity providing after hour surgeries

**Query:** A company was introduced to a charity project which raises funds for patients to get female cancer surgery after hours to assists with clearing patient backlogs at government facilities. Similar backlogs existed for male cancer patients.

The company was approached to work with the charity project to expand the charity's scope into offering male cancer surgery after hours as well.

The company was keen to be involved and wanted to pilot the programme, where the company would provide the equipment, a trained company representative to ensure understanding of the use of the equipment and disposable items required for the procedure.

Further to this, the company wanted to provide donations toward the after-hour rates for staff. The donation would be offered twice, after which the programme would need to raise funds to continue support of the programme. The company would, through the charity, provide this at the first two facilities. Various HCPs would offer their time in support of the charitable initiative.



## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## Part 1, Chapter 4: Charitable donations

Charitable donations mean provision of cash, equipment, company product or relevant thirdparty product, for exclusive use for charitable or philanthropic purposes and/or to benefit a charitable or philanthropic cause. Charitable donations may only be made to bona fide registered charities whose main objects are genuine charitable or philanthropic purposes.

Charitable donations shall not be contingent in any way on past, present or potential future purchase, lease, recommendation, prescription, use, supply or procurement of the member company's products or services. It is important that support of charitable and/or philanthropic programmes and activities by member companies is not viewed as a price concession, reward to favoured customers or as an inducement to purchase, lease, recommend, prescribe, use, supply or procure member companies' products or services.

Member companies shall implement an independent decision-making/review process to identify, prevent and mitigate against potential bribery and corruption risks arising in connection with the provision of a charitable donation to a specific prospective recipient. The process shall include a documented, prior evaluation of any such associated risks and of the relevant information concerning the intended recipient.

Charitable donations may be made if properly recorded and approved by the responsible person(s) in each company or organisation. Charitable donations are only allowed provided:

- They are documented and kept on record by the donor.
- Donations must not be paid directly to HCPs or to healthcare administration staff.

Companies are encouraged to make available publicly, information about charitable donations made by them as covered in this section.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• The charity was deemed a bone fide charity, with a genuine charitable or philanthropic purpose and it was deemed appropriate for the company to participate in and make contributions to the project.

## 3.11 End-user competition prize value

**Query:** A company wanted to offer one of their products with a value exceeding R 5000 as a prize for end-users participating in a competition focused on awareness around the disease specific area.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 3, Clause 6: Competitions

Competitions should fulfil the following criteria:

- The competition is based on medical/product knowledge or the acquisition of scientific knowledge.
- Individual prizes or educational items offered should benefit the patient and / or be relevant to the practice; and within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.

## **PART 3: Questions and Answers**

# advancing patient care through MedTech

Q21: What is the maximum value for competition prizes?

A21: For a consumer competition:

The total value of the prizes for a consumer competition must not exceed R100 000 incl VAT; and each individual prize may not exceed R5 000 incl VAT. A donation of any nature linked to the competition needs to be included in the total prize money.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• The value of the prize exceeds the stipulated value of R5000 and thus would not be compliant with the Code.

## 3.12 Demo, sample, evaluation and/or loan classification

**Query:** A company sought clarification on how to classify (per chapter 6 and 7 of the Code) a capital device placed in ICU for a period of two to three weeks for the HCPs to work with and evaluate.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 6, Clause 1: Definitions

Demonstration products (demos): means either single-use or multiple-use products provided free of charge by or on behalf of a member company to HCOs or HCPs, who are equipped and qualified to use them. Demos are supplied solely for the purpose of demonstrating safe and effective use and appropriate functionality of a product and are not intended for clinical use. Demos do not include the following:

- Samples.
- Evaluation products.
- Products provided at no charge as part of a charitable donation or as part of a research or educational grant.
- Products provided at no additional charge as part of the overall purchase price in a commercial supply arrangement, e.g., as part of an agreed discount arrangement, or as substitute products provided pursuant to a warranty agreement.

Evaluation products: means either single-use or multiple-use products and/or equipment provided free of charge to a healthcare institution by or on behalf of a member company for purposes of obtaining defined, evaluative user feedback over a defined period of use when used within the scope of their intended purpose. Evaluation products do not include the following:

- Demos.
- Samples.
- Products provided at no charge as part of a charitable donation or as part of a research or educational grant.
- Products provided at no additional charge as part of the overall purchase price in a commercial supply arrangement, e.g., as part of an agreed discount arrangement, or as substitute products provided pursuant to a warranty agreement.

Samples: means single-use or multiple-use products provided free of charge by or on behalf of a member company to HCOs or HCPs who are equipped and qualified to use them in order to enable HCPs to familiarise themselves with the products in clinical use. Samples do not include the following:

- Demos.
- Evaluation products.

• Products provided at no charge as part of a charitable donation or as part of a research or educational grant.

advancing patient care through MedTech

• Products provided at no additional charge as part of the overall purchase price in a commercial supply arrangement, e.g., as part of an agreed discount arrangement, or as substitute products provided pursuant to a warranty agreement.

## PART 1, Chapter 7, Clause 1: Definitions

The sale, loan/rental or placement of equipment with an HCP, where the contract between the member and the HCP includes the purchase of consumables / disposables associated with the equipment.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• This is an evaluation process to determine a purchase which is acceptable – thus an evaluation product. The process should be transparent and have the relevant documentation/company agreements and asset management in place.

## 3.13 Branded scrubs in a clinical environment

**Query:** A company noted that as per the guidance on permitted gifts to HCP's, branded scrubs are one of the items that members were permitted to provide to HCP on the condition that the value did not exceed specified maximums.

The company wanted to know if company representatives are also allowed to make use of branded scrubs for use in a clinical environment/operating room.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

PART 1, Chapter 13, Clause 2: In the operating room / clinical environment

Healthcare representatives in the operating room / clinical environment:

- Must be trained on operating room/clinical environment protocol.
- May only enter an operating room/clinical environment upon permission
- Must wear appropriate attire as provided or permitted by the facility.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• The company should defer to the facilities requirements. Most healthcare organisations do not permit company representatives to wear their own scrubs, as they need to ensure sterility which they cannot do for scrubs that are not provided by them.

## 3.14 Paying for HCP endorsements

**Query:** A company wanted to know if an endorsement of a medical device was prohibited and if not then could the HCP be provided financial remuneration by the company.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

PART 1, Chapter 14, Clause 8: Endorsements and testimonials by healthcare professionals

• Advertising and/or promotion shall not contain recommendation of a medical device by scientists or healthcare professionals unless substantiated.

## advancing patient care through MedTech 🛛 🇨

- The Health Professions Council South Africa does not allow endorsement for financial gain.
- The name or photograph or film / video, television advertisement, radio advertisement or any other reproduction of a member of a healthcare professional must not be used in any way that is contrary to the applicable professional code(s) for that profession and all endorsements, where permitted by professional codes, must be done within the scope of such codes.
- The use of healthcare professionals for marketing, promotion, endorsements or testimonial must take place within the scope set by the professional codes applicable to such professionals.
- Testimonials should be less than three years old and be the genuine views of the user.
- Testimonials must not breach the Code. They must be documented, genuine, not misleading and illustrate typical cases only.

They also cited GNR.68 of 2 February 2009: Ethical Rules of Conduct for Practitioners registered under the Health Professions Act, 1974

## 23. Medicine and medical devices

(1) A practitioner shall not participate in the manufacture for commercial purposes or in the sale, advertising or promotion of any medicine or medical device or in any other activity that amounts to selling medicine or medical devices to the public or keeping an open shop or pharmacy.

(2) A practitioner shall not engage in or advocate the preferential use or prescription of any medicine or medical device which, save for the valuable consideration he or she may derive from such preferential use or prescription, would not be clinically appropriate or the most cost-effective option.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• The HPCSA prohibits the endorsement or advertisement of a particular medicine or medical device by an HCP and hence also any remuneration in respect thereof.

## 3.15 Catering for "Tearoom" events

**Query:** A company wanted to know if it was permissible under the Code to provide snacks/platters for tearoom visits where the purpose is part training and part product promotion.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 1, Clause 5: Reasonable Hospitality

- Member companies may provide reasonable hospitality to HCPs in the context of company events and third-party organised educational events but any hospitality offered must be subordinate in time and focus to the event purpose.
- The Code seeks to find a balance between the courteous and professional treatment of HCPs by member companies, with the desire to avoid even the appearance that hospitality may be used by member companies as a means to induce HCPs to purchase, prescribe or recommend member companies' products. Accordingly, member companies must assess what is "reasonable" in any given situation and regional variations will apply. As a general guideline, "reasonable" should be interpreted as the appropriate standard for the given location and must comply with the national laws, regulations and professional codes of conduct.

advancing patient care through MedTech The term "hospitality" includes meals and accommodation and it is important that member companies differentiate between "hospitality" which is permitted and entertainment which is not. PART 1, Chapter 2: Company events 1. General principles Member companies may invite HCPs to company events. Such events include: Product and procedure training and education events. 0 Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings. 0 Company events should comply with the principles mentioned in Chapter 1: General Criteria for Events. Where there is a legitimate business purpose, company events may include or take place in member company's premises / manufacturing plant or HCOs used by the member company as reference centres. 2. Product and procedure training and education events Where appropriate, in order to facilitate the safe and effective use of medical technologies, therapies and/or services, member companies should make product and procedure training and education available to relevant HCPs. Member companies shall ensure that personnel conducting the product and procedure training and education events have the appropriate expertise to conduct such training.

<u>3. Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings</u>
Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional, product

 Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional, product launches and other business meetings where the objective is to discuss product and related services, features and benefits, conduct contract negotiations or discuss sales terms.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion:

• Reasonable hospitality is allowed for both company training and promotional events. Provision of light snacks at a tearoom appointment is not regarded as an undue inducement.

## 3.16 Travel provision for business workshop

**Query:** A company was hosting a business workshop (company event) for HCPs in main cities of business around the country. HCPs from outlying and regional areas were requesting sponsorship of their flights to attend the workshop. The company wanted to know if it would be suitable to pay for economy flights for these HCPs.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## PART 1, Chapter 2: Company events

1. General principles

- Member companies may invite HCPs to company events. Such events include:
  - Product and procedure training and education events.
  - Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings.
- Company events should comply with the principles mentioned in Chapter 1: General Criteria for Events.
- Where there is a legitimate business purpose, company events may include or take place in member company's premises / manufacturing plant or HCOs used by the member company as reference centres.

## 2. Product and procedure training and education events

• Where appropriate, in order to facilitate the safe and effective use of medical technologies, therapies and/or services, member companies should make product and procedure training and education available to relevant HCPs. Member companies shall ensure that personnel conducting the product and procedure training and education events have the appropriate expertise to conduct such training.

advancing patient care through MedTech

3. Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings

• Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional, product launches and other business meetings where the objective is to discuss product and related services, features and benefits, conduct contract negotiations or discuss sales terms.

In addition, sales, promotional and other business meetings should also comply with the more stringent requirement that such meetings should, as a general rule, occur at or close to the HCPs place of business.

They also cited HPCSA Booklet 11, Clause 3.13.7

## 3.13.7. Distinction between education, training, and product promotion

A distinction should be made between education and training on the one hand and product promotion on the other. Healthcare practitioners cannot earn CEUs for attending product launches or other product promotion events. No travel, lodging or other expenses of healthcare practitioners should be paid for attendance at product promotion events or product launches. However, modest meals may be provided.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: Based on the information provided, the business workshop constituted a 'other business' type meeting and not a company arranged educational, product or procedure training event and hence sponsorship of travel costs for HCP's would not be appropriate.

## 3.17 Sponsorship of a HCP fellowship

**Query:** A public healthcare facility approached a company requesting funding (sponsorship) of an HCP's fellowship. The company would not be able to select the fellow as this would be done by the healthcare facility. The company wanted to know if this would be permissible in terms of the Code.

## **Opinion provided:**

The Medical Device Code does not state that you cannot provide a grant for a fellowship. As such the committee stated it was permissible to give an educational, as long as there is formal documentation and a written contract between the company and the institution in which fair market value was applied. It is essential that the company is not involved in the selection of the fellowship and is not informed of who the recipient of the grant is, i.e. keep an arm's length as best possible.

The committee also referred the company to SAMED's <u>Guidance pertaining to the Management of</u> <u>Indirect Sponsorship and Associated Educational Grant</u>'



## 3.18 Donation of medtech to a patient who cannot afford it

**Query:** A customer of the company requested the donation of a medical device for a patient who could not afford the device as they did not have private medical cover. The company received several such requests annually.

## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## **Chapter 5: Charitable donations**

Charitable donations mean provision of cash, equipment, company product or relevant third-party product, for exclusive use for charitable or philanthropic purposes and/or to benefit a charitable or philanthropic cause. Charitable donations may only be made to bona fide registered charities whose main objects are genuine charitable or philanthropic purposes.

Charitable donations shall not be contingent in any way on past, present or potential future purchase, lease, recommendation, prescription, use, supply or procurement of the member company's products or services. It is important that support of charitable and/or philanthropic programmes and activities by member companies is not viewed as a price concession, reward to favoured customers or as an inducement to purchase, lease, recommend, prescribe, use, supply or procure member companies' products or services.

Member companies shall implement an independent decision-making/review process to identify, prevent and mitigate against potential bribery and corruption risks arising in connection with the provision of a charitable donation to a specific prospective recipient. The process shall include a documented, prior evaluation of any such associated risks and of the relevant information concerning the intended recipient. Charitable donations may be made if properly recorded and approved by the responsible person(s) in each company or organisation.

Charitable donations are only allowed provided:

- They are documented and kept on record by the donor.
- Donations must not be paid directly to HCPs or to healthcare administration staff.

Companies are encouraged to make available publicly, information about charitable donations made by them as covered in this section.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: If the patient approaches the company directly to request the donation, with no HCP or hospital involvement, it would be considered a purely CSR/philanthropic action guided by the company's internal policies and procedures. Charitable donations can only be made to a registered charity/NPO and not to customers.

## 3.19 Hire of a hospital venue

**Query:** The company understood that the code prohibits payments to doctors or groups of HCP's either directly or indirectly, for rental for rooms or other services, but had been requested by a healthcare institution to pay venue hire for CPD events. Shorter business and sales meetings could proceed with a charge. The company wanted to confirm if such payment was prohibited in terms of the Code.



**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

#### Chapter 4, Clause 5: Other interactions with HCPs

Payments may not be made to doctors or groups of HCPs, either directly or indirectly, for rental for rooms or other services.

They also cited HPCSA Booklet 11, Clause 3.10

## 3.10 CHARGING OR RECEIVING FEES RULE 7

3.10.2 For seeing representatives Health care practitioners shall not charge a fee or receive any financial gain or other valuable consideration for seeing medical representatives.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: Signatories to the Code may not pay HCPs or HCOs directly or indirectly for this type of 'other' services and HCPs should not be charging medtech suppliers a fee in return for the medtech companies representatives to hold a meeting with them, whether this is for a CME event, company product launch or other. This is in alignment with The HPCSA Booklet 11, clause 3.10.2.

## 3.20 Skills development at congress

**Query:** The company wanted to conduct demonstration and skills development at their company stand at a medical congress. The surgeons would be provided an opportunity to experience the device at the stand.

## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

Page 7: Interactions between medical device industry and HCPs

There are many forms of interactions between the medical device industry and HCPs. Such interactions act to advance medical science and improve patient care. This is a distinguishing feature of the medical device and IVD industries and such interactions act as a backdrop to the following:

- Advancement of medical devices: The development of innovative medical devices and the improvement of existing products requires collaboration between industry and HCPs, often occurring outside the facilities of medical device companies.
- Safe and effective use of medical devices: The safe and effective use of medical devices requires that industry offers HCPs appropriate instruction, education, training, service and technical support. Regulators may also require this type of training as a condition of product approval.
- Research and Education: Industry's support of bona fide medical research, education, and enhancement of professional skills contributes to patient safety, improved patient outcomes and increased access to new technology.

In such interactions member companies must continue to respect the obligation of HCPs to make independent decisions regarding treatment and safeguard the environment in which the interaction takes place to ensure the integrity of the industry.

## SAMED 2 2 advancing patient care through MedTech

#### Chapter 2: Company events

#### 1. General principles

Member companies may invite HCPs to company events. Such events include:

- Product and procedure training and education events.
- Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings.

Company events should comply with the principles mentioned in Chapter 1: General Criteria for Events.

Where there is a legitimate business purpose, company events may include or take place in member company's premises / manufacturing plant or HCOs used by the member company as reference centres.

#### 2. Product and procedure training and education events

Where appropriate, in order to facilitate the safe and effective use of medical technologies, therapies and/or services, member companies should make product and procedure training and education available to relevant HCPs. Member companies shall ensure that personnel conducting the product and procedure training and education events have the appropriate expertise to conduct such training.

#### 3. Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings

Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional, product launches and other business meetings where the objective is to discuss product and related services, features and benefits, conduct contract negotiations or discuss sales terms.

In addition to the principles laid down in Chapter 2, Section 1: General Principles, sales, promotional and other business meetings should also comply with the following more stringent requirement:

• Such meetings should, as a general rule, occur at or close to the HCPs place of business.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: This is viewed as a skills training/promotional offering which happens to be at the same time as a congress and there are no concerns with respect to the proposed interaction, provided it occurs outside the CPD meeting room and is part of the promotional side of the congress.

## 3.21 Donation of a television

**Query:** A company received a request from a public healthcare institution for the donation of a television for the nuclear medicine division. The HPC who sent the request motivated that the television was to provide a diversion to patients who had to wait for several long hours for scans. Majority of the patients were illiterate and as such reading materials were not suitable. The company wanted to know if it would be acceptable to contribute to making patients' experience more pleasant when visiting the public hospital.

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## Chapter 4: Promotional items, items of medical utility, gifts and competitions

## SAMED 2 2 advancing patient care through MedTech

## 1. General principles

There should be no personal enrichment of HCPs or other healthcare providers. No gift, benefit in kind, rebate, discount, kickback or any other pecuniary advantage shall be offered or given to members of the health professions, administrative staff, government officials or the general public as an inducement to prescribe, lease, loan, supply, stock, dispense, administer or buy any medical device.

## 2. Promotional items

Definition: An item that is provided by or on behalf of a Member to another person or organization and is intended as a promotional reminder / campaign relating to the Company and its products. (Records of all promotional campaigns must be kept for a period of five years).

Promotional items to HCPs, appropriate administrative staff, sales and other staff are acceptable provided that they are:

- Within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.
- Not for personal use e.g. no entertainment CDs/DVDs, electronic items for entertainment, tickets to attend sporting events or other forms of entertainment.
- Educational and/or of scientific value, benefit the patient and/or be relevant to the practice.
- No cash or cash equivalents (e.g. vouchers) are allowed.

Promotional items must be branded with Company name and/or Product and/or Logo.

For values, please see Part 3: Questions and answers.

## 3. Items of medical utility

Definition: An item that is provided by or on behalf of a member to another person or organization, which has a genuine educational function that is intended to aid in the medical care of patients. Items of medical utility generally include items that are beneficial to enhancing the provision of medical services and patient care and have no personal benefit to the HCP.

Items of medical utility, including, informational and educational materials, scientific medical reference books, journals, periodicals and anatomical models intended for teaching or patient benefit (value as determined from time to time by SAMED), are allowed to be provided to HCPs within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.

For values, please see Part 3: Questions and answers.

## 4. Gifts:

Member companies may not give gifts of any nature, including but not limited to those pertaining to cultural, religious or national events.

## Part 3: Questions and answers

Q14: What are examples of promotional items that are "relevant to the HCP's practice and/or for the benefit of patients".

A14: Stationery items, calendars, diaries, computer accessories for business use and clinical items such as wipes, nail brushes, surgical gloves and tourniquets are examples of modest value items that could be appropriately provided to HCPs provided their value falls within the maximum value prescribed under national laws, regulations and industry and professional codes of conduct. Promotional items should not be for personal use e.g. no entertainment CDs/DVDs, electronic items for entertainment, tickets to attend sporting events or other forms of entertainment.

Entertainment should not dominate or interfere with the overall scientific content of the programme and should not be the main attraction of the event. Advertising support (brochures, website and

other materials) should highlight the scientific nature of the programme content. The materials should not emphasize the geographic location and should not make excessive or inappropriate references to or contain images of entertainment, sporting events or other non-scientific activities, which could be seen as promoting the location/venue instead of the event content.

advancing patient care through MedTech

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: A television used to provide entertainment to patients whilst they wait to be treated would not be considered an appropriate donation as a television does not align with the definitions in the code of a promotional item or an item of medical utility.

The Code committee understood the aim is to give patients a more pleasant waiting room experience, however, determined the hospital should incur this expense as an overhead/running cost of providing a service to their patients. It would be impossible to monitor whether staff share the use of the television during their breaks and so indirectly this would provide entertainment, which companies are prohibited from providing to HCPs.

## 3.22 Placement of a medical device in exchange for product scripts

**Query:** A company had encountered a new practice within their segment in which a competitor was placing a medical device at an HCP practice free of charge for use by the practice. In return, they HCP was scripting for only their medical device for patient home use. The querying company was no longer receiving scripts as a result and had been requested to provide a free device to the practice in the same type of exchange. It is also not known whether a written placement agreement existed. The HCP is also allegedly gaining an advantage by not having to pay for a consumable equivalent required by patients in the HCP's rooms. The company was concerned that this was a transgression of the Code and was uncertain if this could be reported as such.

## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## The Principle of Equivalence

Where HCPs are engaged by a member to perform a service for or on behalf of a member, the remuneration paid by the member must be commensurate with, and represent a fair market value for, the services performed by the HCP.

## **Chapter 8: Loan or placed equipment**

While it is acceptable for products to be placed pursuant to a placement agreement, certain criteria would need to be met i.e.

The sale, loan/rental or placement of equipment with an HCP, where the contract between the member and the HCP includes the purchase of consumables / disposables associated with the equipment, are subject to the following provisions:

HCPSA's Guidelines for Good Practice in the Healthcare Professions – Booklet 11, item 3.6 Technological Equipment:

• HCPs shall only own and use technological equipment if it forms an integral part of their scope of the profession and practice and on condition that the HCP concerned has received appropriate training in using and managing such equipment.

## • HCPs shall not over-use equipment for procedures, tests and other applications that are not indicated, scientific or based on evidence. This constitutes over-servicing and is prohibited.

advancing patient care through MedTech

- HCPs shall not use technological equipment, healthcare products or devices for profiteering and must refrain from charging patient's fees for the use of such products or devices that are not market related.
- The consumables are used to cross-merchandise the capital equipment in a manner which is defensible and fair.
- The consumables relate to the specific piece of capital equipment being financed by means of the purchase of the consumables and is defensible in terms of the provisions of the National Credit Act.
- The placement of equipment agreement should be in writing and, in cases of valid complaints, made available as per the complaints handling process in Part 2: Dealing with infringements of the Code.
- In the case of equipment licensed with the Radiation Board, such equipment may only be loaned or placed as stipulated in the product license as issued by the Radiation Board.

#### **Chapter 7: Demonstration products and samples**

#### **Definitions**

**Demonstration products (demos):** means either single-use or multiple-use products provided free of charge by or on behalf of a member company to HCOs or HCPs, who are equipped and qualified to use them. Demos are supplied solely for the purpose of demonstrating safe and effective use and appropriate functionality of a product and are not intended for clinical use.

**Evaluation products:** means either single-use or multiple-use products and/or equipment provided free of charge to a healthcare institution by or on behalf of a member company for purposes of obtaining defined, evaluative user feedback over a defined period of use when used within the scope of their intended purpose.

**Samples:** means single-use or multiple-use products provided free of charge by or on behalf of a member company to HCOs or HCPs who are equipped and qualified to use them in order to enable HCPs to familiarise themselves with the products in clinical use.

## General principles

Member companies may provide their own products as demonstration products and/or samples (see the definitions above) at no charge in order to enable HCPs and/or HCOs (as applicable) to evaluate and/or familiarise themselves with the safe, effective and appropriate use and functionality of the product and/or related service and to determine whether, or when, to use, order, purchase, prescribe or recommend the product and/or service in the future.

Demonstration products and/or samples may be either single- or multiple-use products. Member companies may also provide products from another company in conjunction with the member company's own demonstration products and/or samples on an exceptional basis if those other company's products are required in order to properly and effectively demonstrate, evaluate or use the member company's products, e.g. computer hardware and software produced by a company other than the member company.

Provision of demonstration products and/or samples must not improperly reward, induce and/or encourage HCPs and/or HCOs to purchase, lease, recommend, prescribe, use, supply or procure member companies' products or services. Any offer and/or supply of such products shall always be done in full compliance with applicable national laws, regulations and industry and professional codes of conduct.

Member companies shall in all cases maintain appropriate records in relation to the provision of demonstration products and/or samples to HCPs and/or HCOs, for example recording proof of

## delivery for any demonstration products and/or samples provided and receipt of return for multipleuse demonstration products and/or samples. Member companies shall clearly record in the member company's records as well as clearly disclose to HCPs and/or HCOs the no-charge basis and other conditions applicable for the supply of such demonstration products and/or samples no later than the time of the supply. The disclosure to HCPs and HCOs shall be in writing.

advancing patient care through MedTech

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: The mentioned activity may well contravene the principle of equivalence, i.e. there is no justifiable commercially relevant reason or other for the HCP to be provided a product free of charge. The placement for free of the products is not commensurate with the services performed by the HCP regarding the writing of scripts.

From the facts provided, it appeared no consumables were linked to the placed medical device. It is also not apparent that the product placed at no additional charge forms part of the overall purchase price in a commercial supply arrangement.

It was also alleged that the medical device was placed free of charge in return for the HCP prescribing scripts for at home device for the placement company. This may well constitute an inducement by the placement company i.e. the activity may improperly reward, induce and/or encourage the HCPs to recommend and prescribe the companies' products or services.

The code committee viewed this practice as a possible transgression of the Code and deemed it inappropriate. The querying company was encouraged to report this via the whistleblowing hotline or formal complaint channels.

## 3.23 Catering request for a journal club meeting

**Query:** The Company's staff have been informed that in order to receive a training slot during a Journal club meeting, they must sponsor the meals/drinks for all the HCP's attending (25-30 individuals). The journal clubs are held in the auditoriums of the government hospitals, the content of the discussion will depend on which department head is presenting. Once the department heads have presented on certain diseases/techniques /articles, the related industry representatives are asked to detail their products used during the particular procedure. Food can vary from just teas coffees and some sandwiches or platters for bigger groups. Historically, the company had advised staff to not supply any eats/meals during any training session. What does the Code say on this matter? Would it be appropriate to sponsor meals?

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

## 5. Reasonable hospitality

Member companies may provide reasonable hospitality to HCPs in the context of company events and third-party organised educational events but any hospitality offered must be subordinate in time and focus to the event purpose.

The Code seeks to find a balance between the courteous and professional treatment of HCPs by member companies, with the desire to avoid even the appearance that hospitality may be used by member companies as a means to induce HCPs to purchase, prescribe or recommend member companies' products. Accordingly, member companies must assess what is "reasonable" in any

given situation and regional variations will apply. As a general guideline, "reasonable" should be interpreted as the appropriate standard for the given location and must comply with the national laws, regulations and professional codes of conduct.

advancing patient care through MedTech

#### 8. Transparency

When meetings are sponsored by companies, other organisations or by individuals, the fact must be disclosed in the papers relating to the meetings and in any published proceedings. The declaration of sponsorship must be sufficiently prominent to ensure that readers are aware of it at the outset.

#### Part 1: Interactions with HCPs

#### 1. Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser. The meeting and event should be appropriate to all delegates' scope of practice.

A member company shall not organise events which include social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment, nor support such elements which form part of third-party organised educational events. For third- party organised educational events, entertainment must be outside of the educational programme schedule and paid for separately by the HCPs. The registration fee should cover only the scientific programme and hospitality.

Entertainment should not dominate or interfere with the overall scientific content of the programme and should not be the main attraction of the event. Advertising support (brochures, website and other materials) should highlight the scientific nature of the programme content. The materials should not emphasize the geographic location and should not make excessive or inappropriate references to or contain images of entertainment, sporting events or other non-scientific activities, which could be seen as promoting the location/venue instead of the event content.

## 4. CPD meetings

No product promotion is allowed in the CPD meeting room. Company-branded items/promotions are permissible.

Speakers should, in so far as possible, use the non-proprietary names of products during CPD events. Companies must make it known to speakers that the use of trade names, in order to promote a particular product, is not permitted.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: It is concerning that it appears that from the information provided, that HCPs are obliging industry representatives to entry criteria (in the form of sponsored meals/drink) in order to receive a training slot on their medical devices.

It appears that the provision of meals and drinks is a form of sponsorship i.e. the company is getting a benefit from this "sponsorship" by being provided a training slot. As such, it would be better to structure it in such a way that the company pay a fee for the training slot and be shown that the price they are paying is 'Fair Market Value' and what the fee will be used for (i.e. catering). Ultimately, it would also be better for the hospital to arrange and pay for the catering.

## 3.24 Overnight stay at a BnB as a competition prize

**Query:** One of the company's patients owns a guesthouse and offered to gift a weekend away to any of our customers (and their partner). The value of the prize is R1 880.00 and the idea is to add



the prize to an envelope and place this under a chair at the training – i.e. it would be like a lucky draw. Would it be appropriate to use this goodwill gesture as a prize at our next training event?

## **Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

**Definitions:** "Healthcare professional (HCP)" means any individual (with a clinical or non-clinical role; whether a government official, or employee or representative of a government agency or other public or private sector organisation; including but not limited to, physicians, nurses, technicians, laboratory scientists, researchers, research co-ordinators or procurement professionals) that in the course of their professional activities may directly or indirectly purchase, lease, recommend, administer, use, supply, procure or determine the purchase or lease of, or who may prescribe medical technologies or related services.

## Chapter 4: Promotional items, items of medical utility, gifts and competitions 1. General principles

There should be no personal enrichment of HCPs or other healthcare providers. No gift, benefit in kind, rebate, discount, kickback or any other pecuniary advantage shall be offered or given to members of the health professions, administrative staff, government officials or the general public as an inducement to prescribe, lease, loan, supply, stock, dispense, administer or buy any medical device.

## 6. Competitions

Competitions should fulfil the following criteria:

- The competition is based on medical/product knowledge or the acquisition of scientific knowledge.
- Individual prizes or educational items offered should benefit the patient and / or be relevant to the practice; and within the cost limit set from time to time by SAMED.
- The prize cannot comprise of cash or a cash equivalent (e.g. vouchers).
- Entry into a competition must not be dependent upon prescribing, ordering or recommending of a product and no such condition shall be made or implied.
- No cash or cash equivalents (e.g. vouchers) are allowed for completion of a survey or as a prize for a competition.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: The type of customer referred to would be a healthcare professional and clauses in the govern member interaction with HCPs should be duly considered. Competition prizes should not be for the personal enrichment of the HCP and should instead benefit the patient or practice. A guest house stay would be solely for the recreational (personal) benefit of the healthcare professional (and their partner) and would not benefit his/her patients, service offering or practice. A pure lucky draw does not lend itself to medical/product/scientific knowledge or the acquisition thereof.

As such, the Code Advisory Sub-committee, concluded that it would not be acceptable to offer an overnight stay for an HCP (and their partner) as part of a lucky draw at a training event. A better option would be for HCPs to answer a medical/product/scientific question as entry for a competition (which could include a random draw selection from the correct answers), the prize for which benefits their patients or their practice and conforms to the prescribed maximum values.

## 3.25 International event merit review

**Query:** Our company is a South African importer of medical devices and a member of SAMED. Our international principal, with whom we have a formal distributor agreement, is based in the USA and, to the best of my knowledge, is not a member of any industry association (e.g., Advamed,





MedTech). This event was reviewed internally, as a company event (owned and organized by our international principal), for sponsorship by our company for RSA HCP's to attend the event.

Due to various non-compliant components highlighted below, it was concluded that sponsorship of HCP's to attend this event is not compliant. The RSA management team is familiar with the requirements of local and international Codes; they fully understood and accepted the outcome of the review. However, we received strong push-back from our international principal, therefore this request for an unbiased and independent Advisory Opinion

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

#### The Principle of Image and Perception

Members should, at all times, consider the image and perception of the medical device industry that will be projected to the public when interacting with HCPs.

## 1. Event programme

The event programme should directly relate to the specialty and/or medical practice of the HCPs who will attend the event or be sufficiently relevant to justify the attendance of the HCPs. For third-party organised educational events, the agenda should be under the sole control and responsibility of the third-party organiser. The meeting and event should be appropriate to all delegates' scope of practice.

A member company shall not organise events which include social, sporting and/or leisure activities or other forms of entertainment, nor support such elements which form part of third-party organised educational events. For third- party organised educational events, entertainment must be outside of the educational programme schedule and paid for separately by the HCPs. The registration fee should cover only the scientific programme and hospitality.

Entertainment should not dominate or interfere with the overall scientific content of the programme and should not be the main attraction of the event. Advertising support (brochures, website and other materials) should highlight the scientific nature of the programme content. The materials should not emphasize the geographic location and should not make excessive or inappropriate references to or contain images of entertainment, sporting events or other non- scientific activities, which could be seen as promoting the location/venue instead of the event content.

## The direct sponsorship of HCPs to attend third-party organised educational events is prohibited.

Type of event	Applicable rule
Third-party organised educational events (main programme)	Companies are prohibited from directly supporting a healthcare professional, neither as a delegate nor as a speaker. Companies may consider indirect sponsorship in the form of an educational grant, provided that the requesting entity fulfils the requirements as per the definition of a "third- party".
Company-organised events in the framework of third-party organized events (e.g. satellite symposia)	Companies may directly support speakers (i.e. their consultants) at the company- organised event but not Delegates
Third-party organised procedure/hands- on trainings	Companies may support delegates but not speakers, the latter being independent
Company-organised product/procedure trainings	Companies may directly support a healthcare professional either as a delegate and/or as a speaker

The criteria for selection of attendees/invitees must be transparent and available on request for scrutiny.

## Payment of registration fees, travel and accommodation must be made to the professional associations/organisers and not directly to the HCP or their administrative staff. No payment may be made to the HCP for time spent at the event.

Advertisement and promotion at events is subject to relevant domestic legislation and / or regulations.

advancing patient care through MedTech

For speakers, payment of reasonable honoraria and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, including travel, are permissible provided it is in terms of a written contract.

#### 2. Event location and venue

The event location and venue should not become the main attraction of the event. For the location and the venue, member companies must take into account at all times the following considerations:

- Potential adverse public perceptions of the location and venue for the event. The perceived image of the location and venue must not be luxury, or tourist/holiday-oriented, or that of an entertainment venue.
- The venue should be a business or commercial centre providing conference facilities conducive to the exchange of scientific and medical information and the transmission of knowledge.
- No company may organise or sponsor an event that takes place outside its home country unless:
  - Most of the invitees are from outside of its home country and, given the countries of origin of most of the invitees, it makes greater logistical sense to hold the event in another country.
  - Given the location of the company's training facility, relevant resource or expertise that is the object or subject matter of the event, it makes greater logistical sense to hold the event in another country (an "international event").

Further considerations to be taken into account:

- Central location taking into account the place of origin of the majority HCP invitees, the venues selected must be centrally located.
- Capitals and major cities are recommended.
- The ease of access The geographic location should have ease of access for the attendees (for example, close proximity to airports, train stations, highways) and have good ground transportation infrastructure.
- Venues situated on the beachfront can be considered under the following circumstances:
  - There are no suitable alternative venues in the geographic location.
  - The venue is not considered as luxurious in nature. In general, a 5-star rated venue would not be considered appropriate.
  - The venue is well known as a business or commercial centre conducive to the exchange of scientific or medical information.
- In general, the following venues will not be considered compliant:
  - Resort venues (meaning a venue which is part of a complex offering significant recreational, amusement or sporting facilities).
  - Cruise ships, golf clubs (including those owned or operated by a hotel), spas (where the spa is the main attraction and well known for its spa facilities), wine estates or venues with onsite casinos.
- The image of the location among the public, media and authorities cannot be perceived as a purely luxury, touristic/holiday and/or entertainment venue.
- The financial advantage that a venue rental may present should not be considered a factor when deciding on the appropriateness of a venue.

Member companies may invite HCPs to company events. Such events include:

- Product and procedure training and education events.
- Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings.

Company events should comply with the principles mentioned **in Chapter 1: General Criteria for Events.** 

Where there is a legitimate business purpose, company events may include or take place in member company's premises / manufacturing plant or HCOs used by the member company as reference centres.

advancing patient care through MedTech

#### 1. Product and procedure training and education events

Where appropriate, in order to facilitate the safe and effective use of medical technologies, therapies and/or services, member companies should make product and procedure training and education available to relevant HCPs. Member companies shall ensure that personnel conducting the product and procedure training and education events have the appropriate expertise to conduct such training.

## 2. Sales, promotional, product launch and other business meetings

Where it is appropriate, member companies may organise sales, promotional, product launches and other business meetings where the objective is to discuss product and related services, features and benefits, conduct contract negotiations or discuss sales terms.

In addition to the principles laid down in **Chapter 2, Section 1: General Principles**, sales, promotional and other business meetings should also comply with the following more stringent requirement:

• Such meetings should, as a general rule, occur at or close to the HCPs place of business.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: The principle of the strictest rule applies when considering any aspect of local and international Codes, i.e. even though the Principal company does not belong to or adhere to any Codes, the local company is bound by the Code as SAMED members. The principle of image and perception must also be considered. The venue is a luxury venue and the event promotes entertainment/tourism activities as central to the event. The image of the location cannot be perceived as a purely luxury, tourist/holiday and/or entertainment venue.

In terms of the venue, which is a 4-star luxury hotel located on the beach front of Monte Carlo, the venue does not meet the requirements within the Code. Venues situated on the beachfront should only be considered if there are no suitable alternative venues in the geographic location, the venue is not considered as luxurious and/or the venue is well known as a business or commercial centre conducive to the exchange of scientific or medical information. As such it would not be permittable/compliant for the local SAMED Member to participate by sending delegates to attend the event.

## 3.26 Exception request - HCP medical condition

**Query:** The Company has symposium taking place internationally (Europe) in November and received a request from an HCP for their flight to be booked in Business class due to medical reasons. Considering that the Code does not allow us to book Business Class, except for 2 conditions (Faculty members irrespective of day of arrival/ HCPs attending advisory boards and clinical investigations irrespective of day of arrival) and this is not the case for this HCP, would it be possible to grant an exception in regards this case due to this medical condition?

**Opinion provided:** The Code Committee cited the following sections in the code:

PART 1: Interactions with HCPs, Chapter 1: General criteria for events, clause 6. Travel 6. Travel General principles Member companies may only pay or reimburse for reasonable and actual travel. Travel may be arranged by the sponsoring company (or their designated travel agent). Travel provided to HCPs should not cover a period of stay beyond the day before and the day after the official duration of the event.

advancing patient care through MedTech

#### International travel

Member companies may sponsor business class travel for HCPs **only** for:

- Faculty members irrespective of day of arrival.
- HCPs attending advisory boards and clinical investigations irrespective of day of arrival.

Business class airfares may not be exchanged for two economy tickets so that a companion/spouse may accompany the HCP.

Premium economy flights may be considered in the class of international economy travel, however perception and cost are important factors when deciding whether premium economy flights may be acceptable.

First class is never appropriate.

For any other travel, economy class travel is the standard class of travel that companies may offer HCPs to attend both international and local events, including congress attendance and site visits.

Taking the above into account the Code Committee arrived at the following opinion: Considering the surgeon's medical letters and condition, the company may offer a premium upgradeable economy class ticket. Should the HCP not wish to fly premium economy then they should contribute towards the difference from premium economy to business.